ANSWERS TO VBOC-2015-02 PROGRAM ANNOUNCEMENT

Question
1. What is the difference between a grant and a Cooperative Agreement?

Answer:  The purpose of a grant is to transfer money, property, services, or anything of value to a recipient in order to accomplish a public purpose.  No substantial involvement is anticipated between the government and recipient during the performance of the activity.

The purpose of the cooperative agreement (CA) is to transfer funds to a recipient to accomplish a public purpose; however, substantial involvement is anticipated between the government and the recipient during the performance of the activity.  

Question
2. Is there a program limitation on the percentage of indirect costs?

Answer:  There is no limit on the percentage of indirect costs. 

Question:  
3. The period for performance states it starts from date of award.  For existing grantees will this be the period immediately following the finish of the existing grant?

Answer: To ensure that there isn’t a lapse in program delivery, OVBD does intend for the new cooperative agreement period for VBOCs to begin as soon as possible.  If a VBOC selected for award under VBOC-2015-02 is already a current VBOC, they must begin operations under the new cooperative agreement on the date awarded while simultaneously closing out their current VBOC activities.  The VBOC will have 90 days to complete the closeout process, request the final reimbursement, and submit the final report under the current CA.


Question 
4. Can specific service areas be modified for existing Grantees to avoid service area overlaps? 

The 2010-2015 RFP required matching of services areas with SBA regions. This requirement is not in the current RFP.  Subsequent additions of Grantees have resulted in apparent overlapping service areas. For example, Region IV shows both The University of West Florida in Pensacola and Fayetteville State University as responsible for the 8 southeastern states of Florida, Georgia, Alabama, South Carolina, Mississippi, Kentucky, Tennessee, and North Carolina.

Answer: You are correct; this program announcement did not ask applicants to match the scope of services provided with SBA regions.  The applicant determines the scope of the area they will serve and the means with which they will provide service.  Currently, there are four SBA regions that have multiple VBOCs operating in them.

Question: 
5. Does online application differ from document announcement, it typically does.

Answer: In response to this question, the program announcement, which is the funding opportunity, is linked to the announcement on OVBD’s webpage.  These documents are the same.  There are accompanying documents that are accessible through the grants.gov web-portal, which are part of the required documents identified in the Final Instructions; those that are not accessible on grants.gov have been hyperlinked to the appropriate documents on OVBD’s webpage.

All proposals in response to this funding opportunity must be uploaded on the grants.gov portal for download by the issuing Agency.  This is the only medium from which applications will be accepted.  Application packages sent by any other means will not be evaluated.

[bookmark: _GoBack]Applicants must be registered either through sam.gov, for organizations, or through grants.gov, have an Authorized Organizational Representative (AOR) who is responsible for accessing, downloading and uploading application packages through the grants.gov portal.

Question
6. What is the expected award date?

Answer: While we don’t know at this time the exact date of the award, OVBD managers anticipate completion of the evaluation and selection process by late March to early April.  When this process is completed, recipient organizations will be contacted by email indicating selection, with the Notice of Awards being issued shortly afterwards.  

Question: 
7. Is there an SDVOB preference, VA has vetted my firm and certified as an SDVOB?

Answer:  No there are no SDVOB preferences for grants/cooperative agreements.  

Question
8. Who is GOTR for overall monitoring?

Answer: The GOTR is the point of contact identified on the Program Announcement

Question
9. For advance payment what is the max per quarter and how soon can it be disbursed to vendor?

Answer: It is anticipated that most recipient organizations will be on a quarterly payment schedule.  If this is the case, an advance payment will be based on one fourth of award funds, with the balance covering the remaining budget period.  Only one advance payment will be approved per program year. An organization cannot receive an advance payment before the work begins.

Question
10. Is an SDVOB eligible as a “private organization or business” as noted in paragraph 3.1 Eligible Applicants?


Answer:  All organizations/institutions listed under Section 3.1 of the Program Announcement addresses eligibility regardless of SDVOB status.

Question
11. How does one secure government-wide indirect cost rate agreement? 

Answer: Applicants without current indirect cost rate agreements (ICRAs) must negotiate such agreements with the federal agency from which they receive the majority of their grant funds (as measured by dollar amount, not number of grants).  The process of negotiating an ICRA is detailed in 2 C.F.R. § 200.414.  As an alternative to the negotiation process, a grantee that has never had an ICRA may instead opt to utilize the de minimis 10 percent indirect cost rate authorized under 2 C.F.R. § 200.414(f).  In addition, a grantee may always elect to forego recovery of any indirect costs in which case an ICRA in not needed.  

Question
12. Balance sheet with statement sufficient for audited financial statement?

Answer: No, applicants are required to submit the financial documents identified in the program announcement. These documents must be from third party organizations that conduct financial reviews and audits, must be current and signed by the appropriate officials.  

Question
13. How many VBOCs are currently funded?

Answer: A total of 15 VBOCs are currently funded

Question
14. What is considered a regional collaboration?

Answer: Regional collaboration entails working with SBA district office staff, resource partners (SBDCs, SCORE, WBCs), veteran service and community organizations within the states that comprise the region as defined by SBA which are in the scope of the applicant’s proposed service area. 

Question
15.  Our focus will be 3 counties (San Diego, Riverside, Orange), is the below regions being considered or already serviced by an existing VBOC?

Answer:  The counties listed are currently serviced by the Veteran Business Outreach Center –IX which is in its second of a potential four program years of service. The applicant determines the scope of the area they will service and the means with which they will provide service. Currently, there are four SBA regions that have multiple VBOCs operating within them.

There are a limited number of VBOCs available to service all veterans of the United States.  OVBD anticipates applicants will consider that factor in their proposed service areas with which they provide services. As are result of this consideration, providing multi-state assistance assures that veteran small business owners and entrepreneurs have access to resources that (1) specifically understand their business and technical assistance needs if starting new and/or expanding/diversifying existing small ventures; and (2) understand the need to work in tangent with other VBOCs, SBA resource partners (SBDCs, SCORE, and WBCs), in addition to community/regional veterans service organizations (VSOs) to ensure that veterans receive the best possible counseling and training assistance that results in the start of new firms, creation/retention of jobs, generation of tax revenues that spur both business and economic development, and creates more disposable income.  The intent is to aid in the continued and/or revitalization of local, regional, and the national economies through a concerted effort by collaboration with and assistance of multiple organizations.

Question
16. What areas is the focus of this grant?

Answer:  The program announcement in its entirety is important as each section contains information that is pertinent to fulfillment of this funding opportunity.  We strongly encourage you to read it thoroughly and completely.

Question
17. Section 4.3 Technical Proposal asserts the Technical Proposal shall be comprised of no more than 20 pages “... excluding attachments…budgets…”  However, subparagraph i addresses – under Section 4.3 – addresses instructions on what data points must be provided under ‘budget information.’  The instructions, as depicted under subparagraph i, imply those data points are under the Technical Proposal and therefore, must comply with the 20 page limitation which conflicts with the initial assertion.  Should these instructions be under Section 4.5, Attachments and Exhibits?  Can you please clarify?

Answer:  Budget documents are not counted as part of the 20 page Technical Proposal, neither are the resumes or additional documents (SF 424, 424a, 424b, etc.) that are required.  

Question
18. Section 5.4.c. states “The proposal demonstrates, at a minimum, involvement with OVBD, other VBOCs, SBA District Offices, partners listed in 5.25 and veteran service organizations and agencies…” This is unclear. Can you please clarify the reference?

Answer:  This statement is asking that applicants explain the relationship an organization has established with strategic partners or alliances.  If such alliances/partnerships have not been established, then applicants are to explain how they plan to engage in the establishment of such relationships. 

Question
19. Section 4.3, subparagraph d states that “…No more than 20% of award funds may be expended on contractor and/or consultant costs.”  Is that guidance per contractor/consultant or the total of all contractor/consultant costs?

Answer: The statement no more than 20% of award funds may be expended on contractor and/or consultant costs refers to the all (total) contractor or consultant costs, regardless of the number of contractors of consultants used. 

Question
20. Section 5.1 Mission Experience requests that applicant describe relevant past experience.  How recent should “… relevant past experience…” be for it to be applicable and allowable?  We believe activity in the context of older than 3 years may not be relevant due to a number of different factors.  Please provide clarification on the intent here.

Answer: Past relevant experience is not quantified; it refers to the applicant’s knowledge, skills, and expertise in providing entrepreneurship counseling and training to veteran small business owners/entrepreneurs, which have resulted in the start-up of new small businesses, creation/retention of jobs, increase in sales volume/profit margins, award of contracts, approval of loans, business expansion and/or diversification.  

Question
21. Section 6.1 Award Notification states “Applicants not selected…not notified…no debriefing process for unsuccessful Applications.”  If not selected – understanding of where the shortcomings are can be useful lessons learned for future opportunities.  Respectfully request that an opportunity for debrief be reconsidered.

Answer: The Agency’s policy states: Applicants that are not selected will not be contacted nor will there be debriefs.  This policy will not be changed or modified. 

Question
22. Paragraph 1.1.11 states that the SBA expects to make up to 14 awards.  Are the current sixteen existing VBOC’s required to re-apply under this solicitation?  If not, is this solicitation to add up to 14 new VBOC’s?

Answer: There are 15 VBOCs.  Fourteen of those VBOCs are in the final program year which concludes on April 19, 2015. One VBOC, in California, is in its second of four potential program years.  Per VBOC-2015-02, awards will be made to up to 14 centers.  The 14 VBOCs in their final program year may choose to apply for the VBOC-2015-02 opportunity. 

Question
23. Paragraph 1.1.11 sets a minimum award per VBOC of $180,000.  Is there a maximum award amount? (administrative)

Answer: $350,000.00

Question
24. How should in-kind contributions to the current program be accounted for?

Answer: In-kind contributions in this context are non-monetary. 

Question
25.  Are there formatting requirements for this solicitation?  Margins, font, spacing, etc.

Answer: No

Question
26.  Are there any pre-defined geographic boundaries related to the implementation of the grant scope or is this determined by the grant respondent proposals?

Answer: Scope is determined by the applicant. SBA does, however, use a region structure to provide resources. https://www.sba.gov/tools/local-assistance/regionaloffices.

Question
27. Are there any limitations on teaming between SBA resource partners or can SBA resource partners team for a given grant award?

Answer: Proposals may be submitted by individual applicants on their own behalf or jointly by teams of partner organizations which will work collectively to accomplish the proposed project. In the case of joint applications, each partner organization must individually satisfy the eligibility criteria stipulated in the Program Announcement. Furthermore, each joint application must identify the Coordinating Organization in whose name the grant will be issued and which will serve as the group’s sole liaison with SBA. The Coordinating Organization will also be responsible for distributing grant payments received from SBA to the other members of its group. In addition, each joint application must include a written agreement signed by all partner organizations which specifies their individual areas of responsibility with regard to the proposed project and which obligates each organization to ensure complete performance of that project in accordance with the proposed tasks, goals, and milestones despite the withdrawal of any other member(s).

In an effort to provide as many diverse organizations/institutions as possible, an opportunity to provide entrepreneurship counseling and training services, SBA will accept a proposal from only one Coordinating organizational effort.  This assures that as many as possible qualified applicants have a fair chance being awarded a cooperative agreement under the VBOC-2015-02 Program Announcement.

Question
28. When is award anticipated, i.e., month?

Answer: Late March/early April 2015 

Question
29. Can a given SBA resource partner be listed in multiple grant responses as a resource to multiple grant applicants?

 Answer: Yes 
 
Question
30. How are boundaries of the new VBOC's established in consideration of existing VBOC's - for example in northern CA where one already exists.  Is all outreach and service to veterans restricted to those boundaries?

Answer: Outreach and service to veterans is not restricted to SBA Region boundaries.  Currently, there are four SBA regions that have multiple VBOCs operating in them.

31. Can a national organization apply in multiple cities?

Answer:  Yes. The guidance in question 27 may apply

Question
32. Funds must be used exclusively for VBOC purposes - is a separate bank account required by a 501c3.  If other sponsors or partners come in to support events does this need to be reported?  

Answer: Funding can only be used for VBOC requirements outlined in the Notice of Award and terms and conditions.  Banking is a business decision and while separate bank accounts are not a requirement; nevertheless, it is important to understand that federal funding cannot be co-mingled. 

Question
33. Are instructors which may be hired for training (per event) considered sub-contractors and apply to the 20% Limit?

Answer: No more than 20 percent of program funds may be used for all consultant agreements and contracts awarded per program year.  

Question
34. Will you accept proposals from a joint venture or partnership; for example, from a Veteran Owned Small Business, and a non-profit organization that supports Veterans.

Answer: See the answer to Question 27

Question
35. Clarify “ Increase coordination among organizations that assist veteran, including by establishing virtual integration of service providers and offerings?

Answer: Recipient organizations may include on their website links to other government agencies (federal, state, local, and tribal), and veteran service organizations (VSOs) that provide assistance to veteran small business owner and entrepreneurs.

Question
36. List of Attachments. What is encompassed by the list of attachments? Everything attached after SF-424 in the Grant Application or only everything included as part of the Technical Proposal?

Answer: The list of attachments is included in the Final Instructions.  Each has to be downloaded and completed and uploaded in grants.gov.  Failure to complete all required documents and upload into the system renders an application incomplete. 

Question
37.  Cover Letter. Does the cover letter come before the Technical Proposal? Or is it part of the Technical Proposal? Is the cover letter the first page of the Technical Proposal or should there be a cover page to the Technical Proposal as well? Is it shown in the table of contents?

Answer: The cover letter is a separate document apart from the technical proposal and table of contents.  

Question
38. 20 Page Limit. Are the cover page (if there is one), cover letter, and table of contents, excluded from the 20 page limit for the Technical Proposal?

 Answer:  See the answer for question 37. 

Question
39. Budget Info. Is budget info submitted for the first 12 months or all 3 years? Even if for 12 months, should we give budget projections?

Answer:  The initial budget period is for 12 months with 2 option years.  Budgets should be developed for the initial 12-month period and for the 2 option years, depending on the availability of funds. 

Question 
40. Single or Multiple State Coverage Areas. Is the current VBOC national map being reconfigured? Should applicants plan for a single state or can we plan for a regional area covering more than one state?

 Answer: The applicant determines the scope.  SBA intends to have national coverage for aspiring and existing veteran entrepreneurs and will not rely solely on SBA Regions as criteria for coverage.

Question
41. Partnerships. What are the requirements/parameters for partnerships? What has to be shown in the application?

Answer:  See the answer to question 27.

Question 
42. Reference Letters. What are the requirements for reference letters?

Answer: SBA will not scope the requirements for letters of support (administrative)

Question
43. Timing of Award. How soon after application submission will the grants be awarded? When will the VBOCs launch?

Answer: OVBD anticipates award of cooperative agreements in late March/early April 2015.  VOBCs must start no later than 30 days after the award.



Boots to Business Questions:

Question
44. What are the base access criteria to support boots to business (B2B)?

Answer: Coordination with the base and base personnel is provided by SBA District Offices. 

Question
45. Are programs limited to veterans or can the VBOC open support to spouses and families of veterans?  Can spouses of veterans attend the Boots to Business program alongside their sponsor?  Please answer the second question.

Answer: VBOCs support veterans, military spouses and families of dependents and any US citizen. Spouses of veterans may attend the Boots to Business class alongside their sponsor. 

Question
46. As a means to facilitate access for Veterans, can we host the Boots to Business program in our VBOC facility as part of multiple offerings for Veterans SB offerings? (B2B).

Answer: Boots to Business as the entrepreneur education initiative are only conducted on military installations in cooperation with DOD. Any follow on counselling for transitional service members can be conducted at the VBOC locations.

Question
47. Please further explain what is expected in providing delivery of the 2-day Boots to Business classroom course. 

Answer: 

· To assist participants in understanding the steps, stages and activities related to launching and growing a business as a post military career.

· To help participants understand how business ownership might align (or not) with their own personal strength and life goals.

· To provide introductory training and orientation to the fundamental tools and strategies associated with executing on plans to launch a new business.

Question 
48. Is there a document that spells out the program and how it is currently delivered?  If so, how can we obtain a copy?
  
Answer: www.sba.gov/bootstobusiness


Question  ​
49. Also, does this document spell out the requirements for the training instructors?

Answer:
· Training procedures of Boots to Business instructors are provided in a separate standard operating procedure (SOP). 

· Accessing and reviewing the course material and all instructor “teaching notes” and program instruction best practices on the program website;

· Webinars and curriculum updates.

Question
50. ​Can a grantee select the installations without prior approval of the base commander?  And on what days must the training be delivered?

Answer:

· Boots to Business is offered at over at 165 US military installations worldwide pursuant to interagency transitional memorandum of understanding (MOU) with SBA and DOD.

· Classes are taught at a minimum of quarterly at installations in the U.S. and select installations globally. On installations where demand exceeds the minimum the course is offered more frequently-in some cases.

· Schedules are developed by the SBA District Office or Office of Veterans Business Development (OVBD) and the military installation’s Transition Assistance Manager.

Question  
51. Is the grantee expected to provide these courses at every military installation in their service area or just some installations if the area includes for example SBA Region III - MD, DC, VA, WV, DE, and PA?  And can an outside contractor/consultant be used to provide the 2-day training on the military installations.

Answer:

· The number of courses a VBOC instructs in any given region is established by the OVBD, SBA or DO for any time period.

· The recipient may contract with other parties for the performance of certain project support functions in accordance with the terms of the program announcement.

VBOC grantees must have the ability to travel but are not required to.
